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Ir CHAN Sau Kit, Allan (Chairman)
FRIEARTEE (EF)



To provide a platform for the compensation,

rehabilitation and prevention of pneumoconiosis
and mesothelioma for the betterment of the patients,
the workforce in the industries as well as the society
as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the statutory

functions in a professional and caring manner

through:

utilizing effectively the resources collected from the
construction and quarry industries in accordance with
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the
physical condition of the patients;

implementing educational and publicity programmes to
raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals
and trainees in the industries as well as the public ot
large on the prevention of the above diseases, and
facilitate them in strengthening prevention works;

building an occupational health culture among
practitioners in the industries;

providing medical examination programme for
construction workers;

supporting researches relating to the prevention,
treatment and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and

maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-
oriented staff.

CODE OF ETHICS

practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity,
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism
and diligence.
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

BBERITHREES

The Committee on Finance and Administration undertakes to monitor
the finance, administration and investment affairs of the Board, and |
am honoured to report the works of this Committee.

In 2019, the financial position of the Board was stable and healthy.
Total levy income decreased by 8.51% to $336.28 million when
compared with the value of $367.55 million in last year. The levies
from the public secfor decreased by 16.30% to $162.37 million,
and that from the private sector increased by 0.18% to $173.74
million. On the other hand, levies from the quarry industry increased
from $0.13 million to $0.17 million.

Tofal investment income was $72.95 million, which showed an
increase of $15.64 million or 27.29% compared with $57.31
million of last year. The interest income of cerfificate of deposits,
bonds and fixed deposits increased by 32.16% or $13.62 million to
$55.97 million. The dividend income increased from $14.96 million
to $16.98 million.

On the total expenditure, it increased by 0.51% to $290.76 million.
Total compensation of $213 million showed a decrease of $0.46

million or 0.22% from 2018.

Moreover, a fotal of $48.67 million was spent for prevention,
research and rehabilitation, which was $4.71 million or 10.71%
more than 2018. The increase was partly due to the larger number of
rehabilitation exercises faken by patients in community rehabilitation
centres, as well as the payment made to the Hospital Authority for the
new rehabilitation programme launched in December 2019.

To sum up, $268.42 million or 92.32% of the total expenditure of
the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination,
research, prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients and
workers.

Besides, a tofal of $0.64 million was spent for information technology
meeting the maintenance and recurrent requirements of the Board.
Another sum of $1.12 million was spent for hardware and systems
software which were capitalised respectively as fixed assets and
intangible assets of the Board.
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $134.44
million, which was $19 million or 12.38% less than the previous
year. The balance of accumulated fund as at end of the year was

$2,730.28 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus funds
were placed on cerfificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposit af
short to longterm fixed rates in order fo ensure a relatively stable
interest income. The certificate of deposits and bonds will be held to
maturity, while the remaining 15% of the surplus funds were invested
in listed shares and the Tracker Fund for dividend income and long-
ferm invesiment purposes. In 2019, the global financial markets
remained very volatile, and thereby increased the risk of investment.
The Committee had been closely monitoring the investment portfolios
and achieved satisfactory results on investments.

In June 2019, the Board submittled its annual report in 2018 for
tabling in the legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2020 were also
submittied in December 2019 for approval by the Government in
accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and

Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO).

As the authorized paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia Fund
("the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund's interim and final reports
together with the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 which were audited by the Director of Audit and approved by

the Government.

Finally, we would like to thank members for their outstanding efforts
and contribufions in advising and directing the finance, administration
and investment affairs of the Board.

BHERITHREES
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

BREBEEZES

Levy

The overall levy income in 2019 was decreased by 8.51% to $336.28
million. The private sector had a slight increase of 0.18% to $173.74
million (2018: $173.43 million). The public sector had a decrease
of 16.30% to $162.37 million versus $193.99 million in the

previous year.

The Board recorded $14.55 million of levy income from MR
projects, indicated a 41.73% drop from the previous year of $24.97
million. With only one quarry site operating in Hong Kong, the levy
income from quarry industry increased from $0.13 million to $0.17
million.

The construction project at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $23.58 million, a
decrease of $1.04 million from $24.62 million in 2018, representing
a drop of 4.22%. levy income from West Kowloon Cultural District
was decreased from $2.03 million to $1.75 million, representing a

drop of 13.79%.

Compensation

On 3 April 2019, a resolution was passed at the Legislative Council.
With effect from 26 April 2019, the levels of five compensation items
were revised. The amount of Monthly Compensation for Pain,
10 to $5,330.
The amount of Compensation for Bereavement and the minimum
21,230 to $220,000.
The maximum amount of Funeral Expenses increased from $83,700
to $87,330; and the Monthly Compensation for Care and Attention
was increased from $5,210 to $5,600.

Suffering and Loss of Amenities increased from $5,1

compensation for death increased from $1

Expenses for medical appliances are payable under PMCO in respect
of specified appliances which include [a) wheelchair; (b) oxygen
concentrator and its accessories; and [c) oxygen cylinder and ifs
accessories. On or after 26 April 2019, eligible pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma patients are enfifled to the reasonable expenses of the
use or supply of two new medical appliances, including (d] non-
invasive positive pressure ventilation device (and humidifier when used
with the device) and their accessories; and (e} sputum suction device
and ifs accessories.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

The number of new cases recorded in 2019 was 68, including 52
Silicosis, nine Mesothelioma, six Asbestosis cases and one case
suffered from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma. The number of
patients receiving monthly compensation af year end decreased from
1456in 201810 1432 in 2019.

The total expenditure of compensation was $213 million, representing

a slight drop of 0.22% as compared with $213.46 million in 2018.

During the Annual Inferview with our patients, the Board conducted a
survey on patients’ level of satisfaction on the Compensation Services.
The average score given by patients was increased from 93.0 in

2018 to 93.4in 2019.

Lastly, sincere thanks were given to all the Commitiee members for
their contributions in the areas of Levy and Compensation.

BRREBEZEES
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH
MREES

The Commitiee on Research is committed fo financing and working
closely with academics and industries’ sfakeholders for conducting
promising and practical projects aiming to bring breakihrough in the
prevention, diagnosis, assessment of disability, treatment and
rehabilitation of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma. Working towards
this target, the Committee had another fruitful year in 2019, and the
following table summarises our work during the year. The total
expenditure spent in Research in 2019 was $2.52 million.

MRZES EBNEBBERRESEME
RENEBERAE EOSEABEBENIRE
BEENEE APAMERIERLKER
B2 2l BRENTE ABERER
FESRRE -BHEEFAER - ZBERN
019F &2 —HLBENFE  UTEXRE
REZEESRBEIE RFERARMEMNAX
AE-BARtT+=Br-

Types of project Number HEER A
New project approved 1 FTERLRESIR B |
New projects declined 6 WEIEE R 6
Projects completed 4 SERIER 4
Project in progress 1 #EITHIER |

In order to fund topmost projects so as to bring the highest values to
our patients and the stakeholders, the Committee adopts a rigorous
and meficulous approach in vetting proposals. One project entifled
"Inhibition of Warburg effect with a novel combination of
dichloroacefate and niclosamide for therapy in malignant pleural
mesothelioma” conducted by Dr SK Lam from The University of Hong
Kong (HKU) was approved this year.

led by Dr James Ho of HKU, Dr SK Llom, together with other team
members, has been devoting much effort in exploring therapeutic
advancement in mesothelioma. Although it is obvious that research, in
particular in the area of drug development, is a longterm investment
and concrete results often require a long fime for manifestation, the
Committee is confident that we are working on a right direction
opening those unknown factors of the deadly disease bit by bit, and
bringing hopes for a better freatment one day.

Although mesothelioma has been one of the key focuses of study in
recent years, the Committee has also encouraged the conducting of a
variety of other related researches. This could be reflected in the four
projects complefed during the year. Among these initiatives, two
projects brought further insight for the treatment of mesothelioma and
one infroduced a tree bark exfract showing preliminary results for
inhibition of lung fibrosis. In addition to these medical researches,
there was another one aiming for development of training and
evaluation fools for those ethnic minority group construction workers in
the prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma.
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

The treatment of mesothelioma has gained prime attention in recent
years, and the project conducted by Dr SK lam of HKU and Dr
William Wu of the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK) did
bring insight in the potential drug development of the disease. In the
project conducted by Dr SK lam, it was proved that
difluoromethylornithine  (DFMO)  “showed its anficancer effects in
adjuvant therapy and chemotherapy mesothelioma models”, while for
the project conducted by Dr William Wu, it was found that “profeasome
inhibition by Bortezomib suppressed malignant pleural mesothelioma
(MPM]" and “Bortezomib in combination with autophagy inhibitors
could produce synergistic anfi-MPM effects in viro and in vivo".
Although these findings were preliminary, they certainly provided a
scientific foundation for the future design of clinical frials of therapy in
mesothelioma.

More than 95% of our patients are pneumoconiosis patients and lung
fibrosis reduces their quality of life. Unfortunately, lung fibrosis is
incurable and irreversible, and same as mesothelioma treatment, there
is no breakthrough in these areas in recent years. The project
conducted by Prof Kenneth Lee of CUHK did shed light on this area.
The study successfully demonstrated “the ability of TB129 (a tree bark
extract) to suppress collagen synthesis on the silicotic lung fibrosis
model based on RT-gPCR analysis; and histopathological examination
of lung parenchyma also indicated a substantial decrease in the
number of macrophages which was associated with o  better
resolution and reduced inflammation after TB129 treatment”. With the
encouraging findings, Prof Kenneth lee is planning to conduct further
in vivo study for substantiation of the result.

In addition to the above medical researches, the project conducted
by Dr Jo Jo Wong of CUHK contributed greatly to the prevention work
of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma targeted for the increasing
number of ethnic minority groups in the consfruction industry. In the
project, Dr Jo Jo Wong has developed various educational tools for
those workers, and through onsite trainings provided to them, it
proved that these fools were wellreceived by the minority groups. Not
only did the project bring us a set of ready-to-use training tools, but it
also helped the Board in developing longterm promotion sfrategy for
prevention on pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma.

For all the odvancement brought by our research works, the
Commitiee on Research would like to thank members for their
professional advice given in these years. The Committiee will continue
the hard work on researches aiming to bring practical and significant
benefits to our patients as well as our high-risk workers.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

BEEZES

The Committee on Rehabilitation is dedicated to facilitating the
rehabilitation of patients. Through the hard work of Committee
members in the year, the Board has established a wellstructured
framework for providing diversified while tailormade services to the
cohort of 1 432 patients. At the same time, with the objective of
striving for continued improvement fo the rehabilitation programme,
the Committee always enhances existing rehabilitation programmes
and also explores new initiatives to provide the best possible
rehabilitation services to our patients.

Total expenditure spent in Rehabilitation was $21.17 million in
2019, reflecting the commitment and devotion of the Board for
providing high quality rehabilitation programmes. We are glad fo
share in this report some of the more prominent programmes and their
achievements during the year.

The Committee was happy fo announce that the Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board had cooperated with Hospital Authority (HA)
for delivery of a pulmonary rehabilitation programme specifically for
the patienfs with pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma in designated
hospitals (HA programme]. Ruttonjee Hospital and Haven of Hope
Hospital first commenced the services in December 2019, and
continuous effort was being made for identifying a suitable hospital
located in the New Territories in the near future.

While the physical conditions of our patients varied greatly, the
Comnmittee realised that the most needy patient group for rehabilitation
services would include those having high degree of incapacity,
entering old age, being home bound and/or relying heavily on
medical appliances for maintaining their basic physical conditions.
The HA programme was specifically designed to focus on this group
of patients. A specialty team comprising respiratory specialists, nurses,
occupational therapists and physiotherapists had been formed to
provide diversified home programmes and hospital training
programmes to our patients.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

Another group of patients with better physical conditions continued to
receive support and care through our Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation (CCR) Programme.
completed the preliminary assessment in Adventist Hospital —

During the year, 123 patients
Tsuen Wan,
making up a total of 575 (about 40% of our patients) having joined
the programme since 2016. With more and more patients having
enrolled the programme, it is encouraging to note the steady increase
of the number of patients who have developed regular exercise habit
in the community rehabilitation centres and also the increased

frequency of patients having exercises each month.

Convenient access fo the exercise centres is one of the motivating
factors for patients fo join the exercise sessions. The Committee has
been working hard fo source more wellequipped centres fo cater for
patients living in different districts. A tender exercise was launched in
2018 to select suitable and convenient exercise cenfres and we
successfully sourced an increased number of centres to participate in
the programme, from seven in 2018 to 11 cenfres in 2019. In
2019, 318 patients joined the exercise sessions for at least once, an
11.6% increase from 285 patients in 2018. During the year, patients
have attended a tofal of 14 985 sessions in training centres, and this
represented a substantial increase of & 667 sessions or 80.15%
when compared with the 8 318 sessions in 2018. The average
number of sessions that a patient attended per month increased to 5.2
sessions in 2019 from 4.34 sessions in 2018. We are glad fo learn
from the above figures that more patients have successfully developed
and maintained the regular exercising habit, which was the main
objective of sefting up this rehabilitation programme.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

BEEZES

Under the CCR programme, patients would receive regular
assessments by our professional feam to closely monitor their exercise
progress. Since the commencement of the programme in 2016, 458
patients have completed different stages of Phase 2 reassessments
which showed that they had maintained regular exercises for three to
nine months, and 120 patients had entered Phase 3 indicating that
they were able o keep the exercise habit for over one year. In our
last year's report, an analysis was done for the 99 patients who had
complefed Phase 2.1 reassessment from September 2017 to
September 2018 for evaluating the improvement that patients had
gained in this programme. This year, analysis was also conducted in
respect of the period from September 2017 1o September 2019 and

some key findings are summarized in the table below:

No of patients

Improvement Improvement

2HEMBEAERTENBASESREXA
BEEKETHERTG UEZEAHE
EEE - B2010F T EIRIAR - B H458
ERATHKE _BERTEDRNERTM -
FATIEMMBEERT TIZOEABEHRENE
FRR: RHEI208FALEAE=BED
Al REMPERET —FUA ENEHR
M-NEFFRP ZEF G RIOABN2017
FOAZE2018FQOR HAIM A E P ER 55 —
R R R AT AFE A M2 i
STEEMEIANES  XFEEZEGNER
SN WD TEETEHEE2019F0A8 ¢

NTExREET —LEEHER:

Recommended

completed  in 6-minute in max for upgrading

Phase 2.1 walk test handgrip the exercise

reassessment strength level

No. (%) No. (%) No. (%)

EXEREZ [RDEDHT [BRARFE

P& ER— 58 —IRFY ARARER SHEIDEAE BEBIHERHA

EHBEABE MELSHHBEA FRSENFEA EFRINFA

A (%) 2B (%) 2B (%)
September 2017 201769R=E

— September 2018~ 201849 A 99 54 (55%) 23 (23%) 13 (13%)
September 2017 2017F9R&E

— September 2019 201949 A 224 134 (60%) 58 (26%) 70 (31%)

The benefits to patients for maintaining regular exercises were
reflected by the preliminary positive results at Phase 2 where over half
of the patients showed improvement in the fest on &-minute walk.
Moreover, the proportion of patients getting improvement was on an
increasing frend as well.

Before the commencement of the HA Programme in 2019, the Board
engaged the service of outsourced physiotherapists to provide Home
Physiotherapy Services to weaker or homebound patients who are not
able to join exercises in community rehabilitation centres. During the
1 602 fraining

sessions were carried out in patients’ homes. With the commencement

year, 81 patients received the services and a fotal of

of the HA programme, we will aim for a gradual fransfer of these
clients to the HA teams for facilitating a more comprehensive support
and service. In the meantime, before the full scale HA Progromme
comes info operation, we will assure that the needs of these target
patients are met and will review the requirement of the Home
Physiotherapy Services in due course.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

Physical health is certainly important o our patients but maintaining
psychological and social health in the rehabilitation process are
equally crucial to them. Through a tendering process, the Board
commissioned the Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association [PMAA) to
provide social and psychological support services to patients with
psychological and social problems. During the year, 194 cases had
received a fotal of 1 356 home visits attended by professional social
workers aiming to solve or ease the sociol and psychological
problems faced by patients and/or their carers.

As pneumoconiosis is a chronic disease, carers play an important role
in enhancing both the physical and psychological health of patients in
the rehabilitation process. It is generally agreed that the care and
support given by carers would contribute much to improving patients’
conditions. In view of this, the Commitiee continved fo support
sponsorship funding to the launch of a “Carers’ Support Programme”
by PMAA. During the year, 335 home visits were arranged for 80
cases. In addition, with the professional support by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University School of Nursing, six workshops with four
sessions each were arranged for a fofal of the 73 carers to enhance
their caring skills for facilitating the rehabilitation of our patients.

To reach out to more patients of different spectrums, the Committee
also funded other rehabilitation projects including the Tai Chi classes,
health education talks, music therapy classes efc. arranged by PMAA
and the community group gatherings arranged by the Association for
the Rights of Industrial Accident Victims.

To conclude, the Committee would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude fo our members for materialising all the above work. The
Committee will continue to take care of evolving needs of our patients,
provide quality and comprehensive rehabilitation programmes  to
them, and explore every opportunity for further enhancing our services.
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AREZES

Music Therapy Class
FRAEIM

Tai Chi Class
AEHE




MERNIEFRHEESZEEE 20196FK% 19

COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
BEZEg

The Chairman of Committee on Rehabilitation, Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui, JP (fifth right),
had a meeting with patients

EEZEEETRERMATH L (FR)RFEEE

Exercise centre under Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation Programme
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
B ZEES

"Building an occupational health culture among practitioners in the
industries” is one of the missions of the Board. The Committee on
Prevention is assigned the responsibility to conduct and finance
education and publicity programmes to promote the message on
prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma. Thanks to the hard
work of members, the Committee keeps on developing new innovative
projects while continued sponsor is provided to programmes which
are wellreceived by the public. We are also proud of maintaining a
close working re|oﬂonship with other indusfry practitioners for ]oinﬂy
launching the prevention works.

In 2019, there were 68 new cases for pneumoconiosis and
mesothelioma in Hong Kong, which showed a downward frend in
comparison with 72 in 2017 and 71 in 2018. We will continue to
spare no efforts in the education and publicity of prevention of these
diseases. Total expenditure spent on Prevention in 2019 was $24.98
million.

To enhance employers’ and workers’ understanding on the importance
of "dust reduction at source” in preventing pneumoconiosis, the
Committee on Prevention first launched the "Cordless Drill with Dust
Removal System Subsidy Scheme for Small and Mediumsized
Enterprises engaged in the Construction, Renovation and Maintenance
Works Industries” in 2018. With an aim to subsidise eligible
companies fo purchase suitoble cordless drills with dust removal
systems, the scheme received overwhelming responses from the
industries. Given the favourable outcome, the scheme was launched
again in 2019, with the number of subsidised drill set models
increased from five fo 14. A total of 537 applications were received
for the first month. This showed that the scheme not only strengthened
the awareness of small and medium-sized enterprises in preventing
pneumoconiosis, but more importantly, changed their work habit as
they would benefit from using these devices.

For the promotion programmes in 2019, the Committee on Prevention
continued fo send various kinds of promotional materials to 369 main
confractors with newly commenced works through the “Promotional
Toolbox Scheme”. The toolbox confained posters, pamphlets and
respirators, facilitating contractors o promote the correct methods of
preventing pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for construction workers
aft the site more effectively. Besides, through the "Prevention of
Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign”, we provided site
hoarding banners with prevention messages to 105 construction sites
during the year. We hoped that such colorful hoarding banners could
remind construction workers fo fake preventive measures all the fime.
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In order fo achieve synergies, we continued fo jointly organise the
"Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety & Health
Council (OSHC), the Labour Department, the Department of Health
and the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. There were 52
applications received for the “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Award”
this year. Special thanks were given to the participating organisations
for their contributions fo the prevention of pneumoconiosis. As long as
we share and work together, we are confident that a higher level of
occupational safety and health of the construction industry can be
promoted such that a safer and healthier working environment for
construction workers can be ensured.

In order to provide training that suits the needs of various target
audiences, the Board offered highly flexible trainings, varying from
one-day courses that were jointly organised with the OSHC and
designated for the sfaff in the construction industry and quarry industry,
fo seminars organised at different construction sites in Hong Kong so
that construction workers could receive prevention information af the
sites without the need of travelling to the training venues.

Apart from organising various types of activities, the Committee on
Prevention also launched promotion programmes in different media
and through various publicity channels this year. These include
publishing TV commercials in soccer matches, horse racing, financial
and other programmes in TVB Jade, Hong Kong Open TV, Now TV,
ViuTV, Commercial Radio | and Metro Radio. Advertisements are also
put up in MIR stations, bus sfation panels, Facebook and YouTube
efc., on prevention of pneumoconiosis and related information, so as
fo convey the messages widely fo the general public.

As for occupational hedlth, up to the end of 2019, more than
36 000 construction workers have been benefited from the "Medical
Surveillance Programme for Pneumoconiosis/Mesothelioma”  since
2011. Through regular physical examinations, construction workers
not only can detect their chest related problems and receive early
freatments as soon as possible, but also alert their awareness of the
need fo keeping watch of their occupational health. Subsequent to the
examination, some of them were found to have unfortunately suffered
from pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma at the early stages, and were
arranged for appropriate diagnosis and treatment.

Finc1||\/, the Committee would like to extend our heartfelt appreciation
to all the stakeholders, who have dedicated themselves fo fostering
occupational health and safety culture in the construction industry,
especially on the prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
during the year. Note of gratitude is also extended to our members
whose tireless efforts have facilitated the launching of various
programmes. With the concerted efforts of all of us, we firmly believe
that the industry’s concern on pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma will
be further enhanced.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
B ZEES

The Committee on Prevention relaunched the “Cordless Drill with Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme for Small and Medium-sized

Enterprises engaged in the Construction, Renovation and Maintenance Works Industries” in 2019, with the number of subsidised drill
set models increased from five to 14.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
HBEEES
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The Chairman, Ir Allan Chan Sau-kit {left), presented prize to the winning company in “The
20th Construction Safety Forum and Award Presentation Ceremony”.
TFERERAIBRM(E)RIF-TEREXRES)ZEERRAE | LR FEE
HEAX -

The Board confinued fo jointly organise the “Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety & Health Council, the Labour
Department, the Department of Health and the Occupational Deafness Compensation Boarrd. There were 52 applications received for the
“Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Award” this year.

The pictures show the automatic dust reduction spray device adopted by the redevelopment project of Queen Mary Hospital Phase I. This
project won both the “Innovative Improvement Measures Award” and “Excellence Award” in the “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Best
Practices Award” category this year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B M % AR

To the members of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund
Board

(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (“the Board”) set out on pages 27 to 73,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in funds and reserves and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended and nofes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2019 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code")
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. VWe have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board members for the
financial statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such infemal control as the
Board members determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board'’s ability to confinue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
members either infend fo liquidate the Board or fo cease operations,
or have no realisfic alternative but fo do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an audifor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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BYZBEAERE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant fo the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Board's infernal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Board's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw
affention in our auditor's report fo the relafed disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to
cease fo confinue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and confent of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the under|ying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal confrol
that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Charter Road
Central, Hong Kong
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 75 AR &

af 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
M2019F 12 A31 B (LABTIIR)

Note 2019 2018
Bt $ $
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M MR NEE 5 22,139,239 22,364,127
Infangible assets BIVEE 6 812,930 707,072
Held4o-collect debt securities at amortised &8 84 5 AR5+ 8 I #5 E
cost Wz B 5 7 14,978,649 784,960,938
Financial assefs af fair value through other AR BEFAEMEE
comprehensive income Wz emEE 8 194,583,881 200,357,947
Financial assefs at fair value through profit &2 A A BEF AEZF 2
or loss SEEE 8 224,228,675 127,163,075
456,743,374 1,135,553,159
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable FE W BE 2K 9 26,367,698 20,056,603
Interest receivables FE W F] B 19,782,651 18,358,312
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 244,537 82,193
Advance payment for compensation EXHES 369,658 503,188
HeldHo-collect debt securities at amortised 32 88 8% 5 78 51 8 3 35 1
cost WER 2 B 75 5% % 7 770,000,000 —
Fixed deposits with original maturity over REBB=EA%EINEH 2
three months EHE R 10 1,558,421,907 1,537,246,257
Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEY 11 21,513,295 14,712,113

2,396,699,746 1,590,958,666

Total assets 2,853,443,120 2,726,511,825
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 R O &

aft 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

201912 431 B (LABETIIR)

Note 2019 2018
Bt $ $
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES HEeREE
Funds and reserves BEeRf#E 13
Accumulated fund RREES 2,730,280,186 2,584,069,802
Research fund MEES 12,381,470 12,897,087
Prevention fund EHES 22,340,155 27,309,079
Rehabilitation fund ERES 6,951,955 13,122,931
Computer sysfems fund BREGES 812,930 707,072
Capital reserve BARGEE 22,139,239 22,364,127
Investment reserve "ERE 49,071,400 56,295,392
Total funds and reserves HEeRHEHEE 2,843,977,335 2,716,766,390
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liability RBEE
Provision for long service payments REIRTS Bt 120,000 111,000
Current liability REBEME
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 38 N H b E 1~ FRTE 14 9,345,785 9,634,435
Total liabilities BmeE 9,465,785 9,745,435
Total funds and liabilities EEeNEBEHE 2,853,443,120 2,726,511,825

R2020F6A22RAESZEGZEHER

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board members on 22 June

2020 BT 2
Chairman ey

EIBE/ZEZMERZFR B RR < AR

(I

The notes on pages 33 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
=T G

for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2019F12A31BIEEFE (ABTYIR)

Note 2019 2018
Bt $ $
Revenue I'@N
Levy income EE/EPN 15 336,279,441 367,551,589
Other (loss)/income Hib (B58) WA
Inferest income on: HTHEE ZFEWA -
— Bank deposits —RITHER 39,733,793 24,719,689
— Held+o-collect debt securities — RN AT 2 W RE
at amortised cost WER 7 (&7 55 16,239,547 17,629,225
Dividend income from listed securities BBELLMESERE
A 16,980,629 14,959,324
Ex-gratia fund administration charge REFESMBEZITH
received & H 139,004 138,148
Penalty on late payments of levies B SRR P Y ER 2 B R 257,677 456,687
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESEARBELEZ
held for sale BEZ W 12 — 36,672,326
Rental income e WA — 106,725
Sundry income MIEWA 1 32,726
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assefs at ¥R R BEGTABZZ &
fair value through profit or loss MEELAAEBE
W/ (6 18) § 15568100 (19,526,000
88,918,751 /5,188,850
Expenditure T
Operating and administrative expenditures: % 38 I 17 B f &%
— Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma — BRI E R ME KR
compensations wmE 212,997,402 213,463,914
— Project expenses —EERX 48,670,847 43,955,272
— Employee benefit expenses —BEFHEEAMEAS 16 17,497,834 15,279,495
— Administrative expenses —THAX 17 2,968,246 7,229,652
— Medical examination fees —HEEA 18 6,751,810 7,684,407
— Depreciation —E 5 1,066,292 922,610
— Amortisation of infangible assets — \E A E 6 177,331 50,505
— Capital expenditure —BARMAX 633,493 714,578
290,763,255 289,300,433
Surplus for the year FE R 134,434,937 153,440,006
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2H W= R

for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2019F12A31 B EFE (ABTHIR)

Note 2019 2018
i $ $
Surplus for the year FERE& 134,434,937 153,440,006
Other comprehensive income for SEH 25K
the year
llem that will not be reclassified to profitor T & EH 7 A E 1z~
loss: HEH
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair KREBBANRAIRBE
value through other comprehensive income &t A H fth & H Y2k 2
in investment reserve (non-recycling) eMEEZAREE
BB (A g [E) 8 (7,223,992) (26,736,334
Total comprehensive income for 2E2EHRBLE
the year 127,210,945 126,703,672

The nofes on pages 33 o 73 form part of these financial statements. BI3E/3E YA RE T KIS

(I



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES
EERERREEX

FERRTERHEESEES 20195F%K

for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2019F12A31BIEEFE (ABTYIR)

Funds and

Note reserves
B E EESKf#E
$

Balance at 1 January 2018

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value loss on financial assets af fair value
through other comprehensive income

R2018F1 A1 B#&&

EqLE
EFERR

Hit 2 E K=
BAnBEFAREMCEZEKGEZ
TMEEZARBEER

2,500,062,718

153,440,006

8 (26,736,334)

Total comprehensive income

2HEHKZABE

126,703,672

Balances at 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

R2018F12A31HRK
201951 A1 H#&RR

Comprehensive income EERLE
Surplus for the year EFERR 134,434,937
Other comprehensive income Hftb 2 [ W 3%
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BRAnBEGFAEMEZEREZ 2

through other comprehensive income TREEZAABEER 8 (7,223,992
Total comprehensive income 2HWEEATE 127,210,945

Balance at 31 December 2019

R2019512A31 B %8k

2,843,977,335

The notes on pages 33 to 73 form part of these financial statements.

(A

FIBE/BAEZMERZFRHRR 2 AR

31
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2019F12A31 B EFE (ABTHIR)

Note 2019 2018
Liks3 $ $
Cash flows from operating BEEHERERE
activities
Cash generated from operations LETEHELA RS 20|al) 40,431,555 78,921,729
Net cash generated from operating activities F & B /& B E £ 2 IR &
mAEER 40,431,555 78,921,729
Cash flows from investing activities R & ZHEEHRE
Purchase of financial assets at fair through B B2 A 2 BET AE
Profit or loss ZEREE 8 (81,497,500) —
Proceeds from sale of assets classified as ~ HEDEAFBIEHE 2
held for sale BEMSHE 12 — 43,280,000
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  B& A #)% - #25 R & & (753,738 (463,580)
Expenditure on development of computer B2 & i X 45 2 B %
systems (283,189) (681,819)
Increase in fixed deposits with original REBB=MAREIEH
maturity over three months EHITF AR 00 (21,175,650 (271,831,858
Redemption of heldtocollect debt securities B [@ 3% 8 §5 ik A 5t & I
at amortised cost FREWE 2 ET53E 5 7 — 100,000,000
Interest received I B F) B, 54,549,001 37,637,805
Dividends received U B % B 15,530,703 13,814,398
Net cash used in invesfing acfivities HEERHMARE M
bk} (33,630,373 (78,245,054)
Net increase in cash and cash RERBEEEYWZER
equivalents 0 6,801,182 676,675
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning R FE W 2R & KA EHE
of the year Y) 4858 14,712,113 14,035,438
Cash and cash equivalents at REZEZEHERESEE
the end of the year W) 48 5B 11 21,513,295 14,712,113

The notes on pages 33 to 73 form part of these financial statements. FEIBER/ZA M AZEMBIRE 2 HK I

{/'\ °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (‘the Board”] is
established with a role as a compensation body, and fo
engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research
in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered
office is 15/F Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
[Amendment] Ordinance 1993 (“the Ordinance”) on @ July
1993, all those pneumoconiofics who were compensated by
1981 and 8 July 1993 can

make opplication to the Board tfo receive further compensation

the Board between 1 January

and other payments under the new compensation scheme. After
re-assessment is made by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board
and approval granted, the applicant will receive monthly
payments of compensation in respect of the difference between
the degree of incapacity determined by the Pneumoconiosis
Medical Board on the re-assessment and the degree of
permanent incapacity previously defermined by the Board under
the Ordinance prior fo its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from
pneumoconiosis receives monthly payments of compensation
instead of a lumpsum compensation. The Board's liability to
compensation arises when an applicant is assessed by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering from
pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the Commissioner
for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the residency
requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation]
Ordinance was amended fo include provisions fo provide
compensation to persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance has been renamed as the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance. Applicants who are
assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering
from mesothelioma are subject to the same eligibility criferia
and payment of compensation which are consistent with
applicants suffering from pneumoconiosis.

B 75 ¥ 3R B 5

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

—REHR

MERNTERMBEEZESZESGUATH
WESZBEGDZRY TEAEAH
MERNERZBESTHER2EAWZ
WER AR RAREFIF-EE X
BE@vMEREIMBU BEL LBRKE
E148R AT ANE 158 -

(19934F BRI & MR (i B) (12 FT) 15
B (AT RG] R 199347 A0 A
E eGP BAARIOBIFIATA
ZI1093F/ABHHRERKRERE LB
EHEZHERIEREE HARE
TRECHRBMANBET S BRF
HEE NEXMERNERHABGEZE
SEMHAEGREBEHRE  EHRHFASRE
RANEH 2 RATERENIEE ZIREE
FIATZ RPN H 2 K ARK TEREN 1R
EMmEZZE - HESAABZHES
B

B1993F7A0RE B L ERITE
MZALAEBAKEMHEE MEE—KX
HEHE - RIBGG KWERTERH
BZEQHTETB LMERTERLES
TRERFEHESHREATHRIARE
BEMREZRA AIEEHESLZE
G HHE -

2008F4 B 18H " Fh B3R L & 7 (#
B ERPIEL B BRRBEREAA
AR RO ERME 2B A - (FHERITE
m (F ) 15 61 & 78 77 48 e 52 ok A< B2
BN E R MR (FE) 15 51]) - i Ee
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EAEAMHERTIEREETEM
A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance was further amended to allow
patients with pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma fo seek freatment
from registered Chinese medicine proctitioners and  claim
reimbursement of the medical expenses and cost of medicines
for the freatment of pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to
the maximum amount of claims as prescribed in the
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation] Ordinance.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Board are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Board. Note 2.2(a)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the exfent that they are relevant to the
Board for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

2.2 Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the investments in debt and equity securities are stated af
their fair value as explained in note 2.8.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated af the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs o sell (see nofe

2.7).
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BB AEBN &8RRI BT
% -
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2.1 BHIE

EMBHRERARBEETEEAMA
ERMZAMBEAR(EAY B RE
ERNV(BEMAEBERZCER
MmEER) (FEGFEL)
RRBZBB)ARBEEBRN
EHRAGH ESZ B SHRM
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H Al IR RA AT REEFT
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LpEeastHE FEREXRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The esfimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assefs
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statfements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 4.

(a) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Board.

None of the developments have had a materiol
effect on how the Board's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Board has not applied
any new standard or inferpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

B 75 ¥ 3R B 5

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B TTHIR)

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, leases, and the
related inferpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Defermining
whether an arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)
15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC]
27, Evaluating the substance of fransactions
involving the legal form of a lease. It infroduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires
a lessee fo recognise a rightofuse asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short term
leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from

HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim
to enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Board has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 January 2019. The Board has elected fo use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjusiment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Compoarative
information has not been restated and continues to

be reported under HKAS 17.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 does nof have any
material impact on the financial statfement and the
financial result of the Board.

(FEMBBREERNE165
#e
(BEEMBHEEAN)F 165
BMACE B G ERDE 75
HELRHBERE (FE(HE
R BREREZE®))H
IREELHELEEEHEE
(BB (FRRBZE®)SE
ISREEHE — BRERE
B(RRBEZEE)FE2/HR
Al ERHEZREEAR S
H) A B - (&8 B 15 s 2R
F165 5| AE —&HA®E
B REABEARMAER
ERRAREAEEERMAESR
B HEARI2ZEAKUAT
MESE(EHEED REE
BEENHERIN (BB
BHREER)FIO5 & HHE
ARG ZRE(E B G
ADE 17 ARBAER -

(BEMBHREERDF IO
el ABEINEME R EERE
RE BEESHBHRREN
ERNFIHEEHERYS
AR MEXEERRSRE

Mg -

E2Z B gR2019F1 A
HERER(EEVHREE
ADE16FE - EEZBEDE
REETENE TRKE
HMREXEANEFTZEE
RE2019F 1 A1 BERF Y
RN BAE  LREHRE
B WHEBRB(EESS
ERDEI7HREM e

RCEBHBHREER) S
I6RHESC T B 2 MK R
REMBRELBEATZE -



(b)

FERRTERHEESEES 20195F%K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and o new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance
contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the
Board.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3,

Definition of a business

1 January 2020

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8, Definition
of material

1 January 2020

The Board is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of
inifial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the financial statements.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Board are

measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Board operates (“the functional

currency”). The financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollar, which is the Board’s functional and

presentation currency.

B RS RAR MY aE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at hisforical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
aftributable fo the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assef's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate assef, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its infended use. Amortisation on leasehold
land classified as finance lease and depreciation on other
assets are calculated using the straightline method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease
ferm or useful life of 50

years

leasehold improvements  Shorter of the lease period
or useful life of 10 years

Buildings 50 years

Computer equipment 5 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (nofe 2.6).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in comprehensive income.

24 % HBERRE

MR - HER N AE 2 AR R
AHITE R EEBAR - FELRA
EREBEZFHBEERMBEBZ
P °

EEEABEEEAERBRAE
CEREETEREBESEREKAK
AEMEETER  ZBEEZHERKA

BT ABEZRE TR - REE

EENTHERRBILEE - E1EB

VEEARZEMBOZEES

BANBERKILER MAREME

EhREEBNELR B HEEM

AR 2 2 Y ek R R AR e

DEABMEHEHEZHEL A
Wi P ERE R RGHEH -
DERBMEMEEZHE LK
REMEEZRERBIAT ZM
s A A H S AR (R HIBR R
BREBE)RERENETE

BELE #TEEMRSOFH
2HE L
2858
MENE BEHKI0FTEM
AT FHZREE
B 0%
BWBRE ST

A s (E A R A
WEMEBART B BHE (N
) -

FEEZRESRSRAMGAA
Yo bl 5 %8 - AR & 58 B UK 2
HrllE 258 (ME2.6) -

HEEECREBEDRBLEERME
NEBHEEHSEMEE  TRE2HE
J‘IQ SR TER ©



FERRTERHEESEES 20195F%K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 Intangible assets

Expenditure on research acfivities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development acfivities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Board has sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
cosfs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are sfated af cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2.6). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Other infangible assets that are acquired by the Board
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see

note 2.6).

Amortisation of infangible assefs with finite useful lives is
charged fo profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Computer software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amorfisation are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assefs [cash-generafing units). Non-inancial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of the
reporting period.
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2.7 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assefs are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale fransaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell, except for assets such as assefs arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and investment
properties that are carried at fair value and contractual
rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent writedown of the asset fo fair value less costs
to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess
of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date
of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the statement
of financial position.

2.8 Investments in debt and equity securities

The Board'’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities are sef out below.

Investments in debt and equily securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Board commits fo
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly atfributable fransaction
costs, except for those investments measured af FVPL for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. For an explanation of how the Board defermines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 3.3. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity invesiments held by the Board are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

—  amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and inferest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.18(b).

—  FVOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within @
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of confractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in comprehensive income of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective
inferest method] and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the invesiment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from funds and reserves to
comprehensive income.

—  FVPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
[recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest] are recognised in
comprehensive income.

B 75 ¥ 3R B 5

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

BRRARELUIN ZRE
ESZEERAZHBRARES
BANTHERRNZ—

— BENAN(RET ARG
BERERMNENRZALD
ReREMBAE) HEZH
BWAERERMEEFE
(2FME2.18(0)) °

- RAAKBESFARMLEZERK
moAEE(MRENENR
TREEREAE RHEM
T EBAERENEBRA
ZBRERKEBKRRANE
ERELHEMER) - XA
EEZHNE M2 E
R ERMEEERE  MEK
AMERBERMNEEFTE) &
S BE Wz Ko 5 BN 2 R
R -BERERILERE R
HrmbsE Rtz Bl
EeMfREREEE2EUKES -

- BARBEFABRzR(KRE
THARBHEKANGTERR
ARBEFAEME2EKR
(ABE)Z2EE)-REZR
REBEEEH(EEMNEINE
T Yo 25 B R

41



42

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board ~ Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for frading
purposes and on inifial recognition of the invesiment the
Board makes an irrevocable election o designate the
investment at FVOCI (nonecycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrumentby-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the investment reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the investment reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to accumulated fund. It is nof
recycled through comprehensive income. Dividends from
an investment in equity securifies, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
comprehensive income as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.18c).

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assefs and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the stafement of financial position
when the Board currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
fo sefile on a net basis or redlise the assets and seffle the
liabilities simullaneously. The Board has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts o be offset in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the fermination of a
contract.

2.10 Credit losses from financial instruments

The Board recognises a loss allowance for ECls on
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, interest
receivables, deposits and prepayments, advance
payment for compensation, fixed deposits with original
maturity over three months and heldfo-collect debt
securities at amorfised cost).

Financial assets measured af fair value, including units in
bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated ot FVOCI [non-recycling), are nof
subject to the ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Measurement of ECLs

ECls are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Board in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Board expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial assets,
accounts receivable and other receivables are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof where the effect
of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECls is
the maximum contfractual period over which the Board is
exposed fo credit risk.

In measuring ECls, the Board tfakes info account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
fo result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

—  lifefime ECLs: these are losses that are expected fo
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the itfems to which the ECL model

applies.

loss allowances for accounts receivable are always
measured at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs. ECls on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Board's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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For all other financial instruments, the Board recognises a
loss allowance equal fo 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECls.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Board compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Board
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay ifs credit obligations fo the Board in full,
without recourse by the Board fo actfions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial assef is QO
days past due. The Board considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is faken info
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since inifial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or inferest on
their contractually due dates;

—  an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument's external or internal credit
rating (if availablel;

— an actual or expected significant deteriorafion in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  exisfing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability to
meet ifs obligation to the Board.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk rafings.
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ECls are remeasured af each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in comprehensive income.
The Board recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2.18(b)
is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case inferest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Board assesses whether a
financial asset is creditimpaired. A financial asset is
creditimpaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes
the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
de|inquency in interest or principo| payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
info bankruptey or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) 1o the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Board defermines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject fo the write-off.
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211

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
comprehensive income in the period in which the recovery
oceurs.

Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Board has an
unconditional right fo receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is

due.

Receivables are stafed af amortised cost using  the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see

note 2.10).

I collection of receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current asses.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and shortterm, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity af
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.10.

2.13 Funds and reserves

The income and expenses relafing fo funds and reserves,
other than investment reserve, are directly dealt with in
comprehensive income. Any net surpluses or deficits
relating fo these funds and reserves are transferred
between the statement of comprehensive income and the
respective funds and reserves.
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2.14 Payables

Payables are recognised initially af fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective inferest method.

Payables are classified as current liabilities it payment is
due within one vyear or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Board has a present
legal or constructive obligation where, as a result of past
events, it is probable that an oufflow of resources will be
required fo seftle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligafions, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in setflement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.16 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncerfain future events not wholly within the confrol
of the Board. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that oufflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
ouflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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(B TTHIR)

2.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee enfitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue fo employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements fo sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Pension obligations

The Board operates a defined confribution
retirement scheme under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance ("ORSO Scheme”)
and a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
Board has no further payment obligations once the
confributions have been paid. The confributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due and, for ORSO Scheme, are reduced by
contributions  forfeited by those employees who
leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
confributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an assef fo the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.18 Revenue and other income

(a)

Llevy income, penalty on late payments of
levies and ex-gratia fund administration
charge

levy income, penalty on late payments of levies
and exgratia fund administration charge are
recognised when the Board becomes entifled to
them and it is probable that they will be received.
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(b) Interest income
Inferest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts esfimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
creditimpaired, the effective inferest rate is applied
fo the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assefs, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

2.10).

(c) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(d) Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

(e) Sundry income
Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.

2.19 Compensation

Compensation expense is accounted for on an accruals
basis.

2.20 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Board assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
confains, a lease if the confract conveys the right fo
confrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obfain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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As a lessee
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract confains lease component(s)
and nonlease component(s), the Board has elected
not fo separate nonlease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Board
recognises a rightofuse asset and a lease liability,
except for shortterm leases that have a lease ferm
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Board entfers info a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Board decides whether to
capifalise the lease on a leaseby-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are notf capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the inferest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannof be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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The rightofuse asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is inifially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease |Iobi|H\/
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the rightof-
use assets also includes an estimate of cosfs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
resfore the underlying asset or the site on which if is
located, discounted fo their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The rightof-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses [see notes 2.6).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Board's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Board will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the rightofuse assef, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the rightof-use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the sfatement of financial position, the Board
presents rightof-use assefs within the same line item
as similar underlying assets and presents lease
liabilities separately.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership is not transferred to the Board
as lessee are clossified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor] are charged to
comprehensive income on a sfraightline basis over
the period of the lease.

(B)
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3 Financial risk and fund risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Board's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, price risk and

cash flow interest rate risk. The Board's overall risk

management program focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Board's financial performance.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Board is primarily atfributable to
accounts receivable, heldto-collect debt securities
at amortised cost, fixed deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash at banks.

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected
levy income. The credit risk on heldtocollect debt
securities at amorfised cost, fixed deposits with
original maturity over three months and cash at
banks is limited because the counterparties are
corporations and banks with high credit rafing
assigned by infemnational creditrating  agencies.
Accordingly, the Board members are of the opinion
that the Board's activities are not exposed tfo
significant credit risk.

Accounts receivable

The Board's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
confractor rather than the industry or counfry in
which the confractors operate. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Board, as where there is credit exposure fo the
Board, it is spread over a diversified portfolio of
contractors.
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Evaluation of recoverability focuses on the
confractor’s past hisfory of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and fake info
account information specific fo the confractor as
well as pertaining fo the economic environment in
which the contractor operates. Accounts receivable
are due within 30 days from the date of billing.

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal fo lifetime ECls,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. The
Board measures loss allowance on financial assets
based on the past loss experience, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking information af
the end of each reporting period. The Board has
substantially provided for uncollected levy due from
contractors in financial difficulties. For other
uncollected levy income, the Board considered that
there is no significant loss allowance recognised in
accordance with HKFRS @ as at 31 December
2019 and 2018, and no expected credit loss rate
has therefore been disclosed.

The following table provides information about the
Board's exposure fo credit risk as at 31 December

2019 and 2018
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2019
Gross

carrying Loss
amount allowance
BERHEE EERE
$ $
Current (not past due) BIEA (R #ER) 25,723,537 —
1-90 days past due BHEI1ZEQ0H 645,269 98,959
@1 days — 1 year past due BHAOIRZE] 290,236 275,724
More than 1 year past due BMEIZNF 1,666,770 1,583,431

28,325,812 1,958,114
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2018
Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
HERE B EriERE
$ $
Current [not past due) B HA (AR 80 HA) 19,924,895 -
1-90 days past due BHEI1 £90H 504,116 433,732
@1 days — 1 year past due BMEACIHE1F 1,226,474 1,165,150
21,655,485 1,598,882
Movement in the loss allowance account of TEWBEZ v B ER B 8T -
accounts receivable is as follows:
2019 2018
$ $
At 1 January ®m1ATH 1,598,882 33,194
Impairment loss of accounts receivable & U B FUR (8 /&5 18
[note 17) (FFzE17) 359,232 1,565,688
At 31 December B12A31H 1,058,114 1,598,882
(b) Liquidity risk b) REBEELEK

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Board, through its Committee on Finance and
Administration, has adopted a prudent investment
and freasury strategy so as fo ensure that it
maintains  sufficient cash to meet ifs liquidity
requirements.
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The table below analyses the Board's financial
liabilities info relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to the confractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

B 75 ¥ 3R B 5

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)
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2019 2018
$ $
Within 1 year or on demand —ERRIRER
Accruals and other payables [note 14)  f& &t 7% 18 & £ 1tb & 1
I (BFFE14) 4,936,304 5,229,954
Price risk () E%E Rk

The Board is exposed to equity price risk because
of the listed investments held. The investment
portfolio is managed by the Commitiee on Finance
and Administration of the Board and in accordance
with the Board's investment guidelines.

The Board's listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2019, if the equity price had
increased/decreased by 5% (2018: 5% with all
other variables held constant, financial assets at
FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL, investment reserve
and accumulated fund would have increased/
decreased by approximately $9,729,000 (2018:
$10,018,000), $11,211,000 (2018;
$6,358,000), $9,729,000 (2018: $10,018,000)
and $11,211,000 (2018: $6,358,000)
respectively, as a result of changes in fair value of
the listed investments.
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(d)

Interest rate risk

Inferest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market inferest rafes. The
Board's interest rate risk mainly arises from the bank
balances and is managed by the Committee on
Finance and Administration of the Board.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on bank
deposits had been 100 {2018: 100) basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
surplus for the year would have been $15,799,000
(2018: $15,519,000) higher/lower as a result of

higher/lower interest income.

3.2 Fund risk management

The Board's objective when managing funds is to

safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going

concern and to have sufficient funding for future

operations. The Board's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The funds of the Board comprise its funds and reserves.

3.3 Fair value measurement

The table below analyses the Board's financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different

levels have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices] or indirecily (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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The following fable presents the Board's assets that are TRERESZEGRAABEAEZ
measured at fair value: BE -
2019 2018
$ $
Level 1 —B&
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAREBEFAHM
TEHERzEMEE 194,583,881 200,357,947
Financial assefs at FVPL AR BEIAEBRY
TREE 224,228,675 127,163,075
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active NERTERGZEMTAEARBED
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of ERREPRZ)ERTIHRE - 47 5
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if EREHEBARSM BHEXHE
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an L THEE TERBIESHE
exchange, dealer, broker, indusiry group, pricing service, EERE MEZEEBRARERAFTEHE
or regulafory agency, and those prices represent actual ERTHET I MEL S ISR
and regularly occurring market fransactions on an arm'’s RER -EoZESgReRMEEMAT
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial BRENEBKEE - 25T A2 A
assefs held by the Board is the current bid price. These F—EBR-

instruments are included in level 1.

Critical accounting estimates and 4 BECEH G R Y E

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are EEGHHARHATEREBRTLHB R EMW
based on hisforical experience and other factors, including Z R BEEEAENHERKREGZ
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable HBRZE - M NET{ERES o

under the circumstances.
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The Board makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Held-to-collect debt securities at amortised
cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on classifying
non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity at amortised cost. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Board defermines the appropriafe business
models and assesses the “solely payments of principal
and interest” requirements for financial assets. The
certificates of deposits were classified as heldo-collect
debt securities at amortised cost as the Board has
determined that the objective of holding the investments is
to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed periodically fo assess
for impairment. The Board estimates loss allowances for
expected credit losses based on historical credit loss
experience and the current and forecast general
economic conditions. If the financial conditions of
contractors were fo deteriorate, actual write off would be
higher than expecfed. The methodology and assumptions
used are reviewed regularly to reduce any difference
between the loss estimates and actual amounts.
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(c) Provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing
and amount of any outflows.

Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher
degree of judgement than other types of provisions.
When matters are at an eor|y stage, accounting
judgements can be difficult because of the high degree of
uncertainty associated with determining whether a present
obligation exists, and esfimating the probability and
amount of any oufflows that may arise. As matters
progress, the Board members and legal advisers evaluate
on an ongoing basis whether provisions should be
recognised, revising previous judgements and estimates
as appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is typically
easier fo make judgements and estimates around a better
defined set of possible outcomes. However, the amount
provisioned can remain very sensitive fo the assumptions
used. There could be a wide range of possible outcomes
for any pending legal proceedings. As a result, it is often
not practicable to quantify a range of possible outcomes
for individual matters. It is also not practicable to
meaningfully quantify ranges of potential outcomes in
aggregate for these types of provisions because of the
diverse nature and circumstances of such matters and the
wide range of uncertainties involved.
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5 MF- -#EkKE

Leasehold Leasehold  Computer
Properties land improvements  equipment Total
HENE
mE HELH# HRIR ElFE @zt
$ $ $ $ $
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318
Cost ( 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 — 29017432
Accumulated depreciafion 2EE (2,557,905) (59,783 (3,576,587 — 16,194,275
Net book amount EREE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 — 22,823,157
Year ended 31 December BZ2018F12R831H
2018 L5E
Opening net book amount FNREEE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 — 22,823,157
Additions NE - = = 463,580 463,580
Depreciation [note 13 & (fE14) (341,054 (7,971 (510,941) (62,644) (922,610)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 14,153,731 6,787,578 1,021,882 400,936 22,364,127
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31A
Cost PR 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 463,580 29,481,012
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,898,959 (67.754) (4,087,528 (62,644) (7,116,885
Net book amount EREZE 14,153,731 6,787,578 1,021,882 400,936 22,364,127
Year ended 31 December BZ2019%12R831H
2019 L5E
Opening net book amount FNEmFE 14,153,731 6,787,578 1,021,882 400,936 22,364,127
Additions NE = = = 841,404 841,404
Depreciation note 13] & (ME13) (341,054) (7,971) (510,941) (206,326) (1,066,292
Closing net book amount EREEEE 13,812,677 6,779,607 510,941 1,036,014 22,139,239
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318
Cost PR 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 1,304,984 30,322,416
Accumulated depreciation e (3,240,013 (75,725 (4,598,469 (268,970 (8,183,177
Net book amount EREZE 13,812,677 6,779,607 510,941 1,036,014 22,139,239
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Bt 75 ¥R 3R MY B

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAE T R)
Intangible assets 6 BIEEE
Computer
software
S E 4
$
Cost: RN :
At T January 2018 R2018F1 A1 H —
Additions NE 757,577
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12831 H /57,577
At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1H 757,577
Additions NE 283,189
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12A31H 1,040,766
Accumulated amortisation: RIt#e
At T January 2018 R2018F1A1H —
Charge for the year (note 13) FrxH (FsE13) 50,505
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12831 H 50,505
At T January 2019 W2019F1 A1 H 50,505
Charge for the year (note 13) FrxH (FsE13) 177,331
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12831 H 227,836
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12831 H 812,930

At 31 December 2018

M2018F 124318 707,072
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

Annual Report 2019

7 Held-to-collect debt securities at amortised 7 R#EEE K A 2 I F/E K
cost BMzEXKES
2019 2018
$ $
Certificates of deposits, at nominal value 17 & 2 FE 785,000,000 785,000,000
Unamortised discounts REH 2 (21,351) (39,062)
At amortised cost Yo S AR AR 784,978,649 784,960,938
less: Certificates of deposits to be matured 35 : #H 1218 A BN H 2
within 12 months FRE (770,000,000) =
Certificates of deposits to be matured after #1218 A A28 2 17 5K &
12 months 14,978,649 784,960,938

Movements in certificates of deposits are summarised as

follows:

BREZEBEANT :

Held-to-
collect debt
securities at

amortised

cost

1% 85 R AR

sHE 3 £ E W

BzEKES

$

At T January 2018 M2018%F1A81H 884,943,227
Redemption fE o (100,000,000)
Amortisation of discounts BT 08 8 17,711
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 M2018F 12 A31HKEMR20194F1 418 784,960,938
Amortisation of discounts T 0 55 17,711
At 31 December 2019 HR2019F12A31H 784,978,649
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Certificates of deposits are with fixed inferest rates ranging from
1.78% to 4.85% (2018: 1.78% to 4.85%) and maturity dates
between March 2020 to March 2021 (2018: March 2020 to
March 2021).

The Board did not reclassify any financial assets measured at
amortised cost fo fair value during the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balance did not contain

impaired assets.

Certificates of deposits with nominal value of $Nil (2018:
$100,000,000] were matured during the year ended 31
December 2019. There were no disposals during the years

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The fair value of certificates of deposits based on quoted market

bid prices is $781,953,130 (2018: $775,438,780).

All' certificates of deposits are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

B 75 ¥ 3R B 5

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

7R E B EFNENF1.78%E4.85%
(20184 : 1.78% %= 4.85%) - B 81 B 7
F 20203 A 220213 A (20184 :
202053 A& 202143 H) °

REBE2019F 201812431 H IEF
B E2ZEQUWEMEMREHERAN
HEZEREEENOBRA/AEAAEBE
HEZEMEE-

R2019%F K2018512A31H @ &8l
BERECREERE-

8 Z 7t (20184 : 100,000,0007T) 2
FABEREE2019F12A31B 15 E
Bl HE20194F k2018123318
HFEERYEHEEHE-

B BREBEFEZCEREZR
7 B B /781,953,130t (20184 :
775,438,7807T) °

PREFREmEESABEETE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

8 Other non-current financial assets 8 HMERBEMEE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at

FVOCI (note) FVPL
BRAREBE

FFARMER BRAREE
Wi 2 & FFABR#EZ

EE (ffaE) EREE
$ $
Securities listed in Hong Kong, EEBLTZES EWE:

at market value:

At T January 2018 R2018F 1 A1H 225,949,355 146,689,075
Additions NE 1,144,926 =
Fair value loss through other comprehensive & @ H b 2 E U 2551 B8R 2 A A7

income fransferred to investment reserve BEFEERERERE

[non-Tecycling) (note 13) (PrAregm) (FzE13) (26,736,334) -
Fair value loss recognised in comprehensive R 2 E W R R 2 A1 BE

income &8 — (19,526,000
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A318 &

1 January 2019 M2019F 1 A1H 200,357,947 127,163,075
Additions NE 1,449,926 81,497,500
Fair value loss through other comprehensive & @ H b 2 E U 2551 B8R 2 A A2

income transferred to investment reserve EBEEFEERERERB

(non-recycling) (note 13) (NArgEE) (FHFE13) (7,223,992 -
Fair value gain recognised in REBREERZAAEBE

comprehensive income W= — 15,568,100
At 31 December 2019 201912831 B 194,583,881 224,228,675

All'listed securities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B FTMESFEBEEOABESE -
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Note: Details of the Board's investments in listed equity
securiies, which are designated at FVOCI, are as

Bt 75 ¥R 3R MY B

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

=
']E‘q:

RS RBeHETEREAAEE
FRARMEE G 2 EHRAE

follows: FZIWEFHBOT
Dividend Dividend
income for income for
Fair value the year Fair value the year
as at ended as at ended
Stock 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Name of company code 2019 2019 2018 2018
W2019F HEZE2019%F R2018% & Z2018%
128318 12A318& 12A318 12833180 &
NGIES ! BARYE Z2AEBE EBEZREKA ZAREE EzBRERA
$ $ $ $
CK Hutchison Holdings Lid. RIMZEXZERDA ] 31,502,309 1,344,042 31,883,898 1,246,525
CLP Holdings Lid. FEERERAF 2 20,376,720 766,304 22,018,800 738,936
Hong Kong and China Gas EREPERFARALR 3
Co. lid. 14,113,247 1,755,086 13,656,357 1,422,346
HSBC Holdings plc ELERERAA 5 33,516,180 2,200,060 35,691,840 2,203,014
Power Assets Holdings Lid. BHEXERAA 6 10,288,500 505,400 9,837,250 1,588,400
Hang Seng Bank Lid. BERITERRA 11 21,461,300 1,039,740 23,434,140 933,100
Sun Hung Kai Properies Lid. MEEMERRERDA 16 26,842,500 1,113,750 25,110,000 1,046,250
Swire Pacific Lid. ALEEERADA 19 12,633,800 549,675 14,431,150 401,350
CK Asset Holdings Lid. RIEXSEERDA 1113 23,849,325 826,777 24,294,512 741,979
104,583,881 10,100,834 200,357,947 10,321,900
Accounts receivable 9 MEUWBERRX
2019 2018
$ $
levy income receivable JFE W SR M A 28,325,812 21,655,485
less: Loss allowance B S IER (1,958,114) (1,598,882
levy income receivable, net FE W B AR 58 26,367,698 20,056,603

At 31 December 2019, accounts receivable of $644,161
(2018: $131,708) were past due but not impaired.

At 31 December 2019, accounts receivable of $1,958,114
(2018: $1,598,882) were impaired and substantially provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly related to
confractors that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of receivables is expected to be
recovered.

M2019F 1231 H » EWERFKG44,16]
7L (20184 : 131,7087T) B i Hi 1B AR R
@0

MR2019F 12 A31 8 - EUERFR1,958,114
L (20184 : 1,598,8827T) R E HE K
B EEL B @RI 2R E R R
ZEAGRVERECABHER ME
2 EERT (A 1R - FEEE AT 4R B AR 1 B AR
A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

10

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrafive expenses in comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash. The origination of new accounts receivable net
of those seffled confributed to the increase in the loss allowance

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

No bad debts were written off directly in administration
expenses in comprehensive income during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Board does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate their
fair values as af 31 December 2019 and 2018 and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Further details on the Board's credit policy and credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note 3. 1(a).

Fixed deposits with original maturity over
three months

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on fixed
deposits with original maturity over three months is 2.55% (2018:
2.49%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity of

211 days (2018: 212 days).

The carrying amounts of fixed deposits are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

10

B R B EORLE WK E BB 2 AT A
2EKSEETTRAX - EBMELRR
EIEMNRER  FFAREBERE &8 —
BT AN - RMBCEERARAE
EZ W EHEE2019412
ASTBHIEFEZERREE M-

REBE219F K2018F 12431 B IEF
EoMEZEREEREZEKREE N 21T
IR 5 S 8 o

EsZBeUERAETANERDIELSL
ﬁo

R2019F Kk2018F 12 A31 A » KR

RehEEBEREAABEMRE  AY
EEEE -
ERESZEENEERRLRERK

RRWEERRZE - THBHNWME
3.1a) °

FEBB=@ABIN
= 87 5
M2019412A31A R E B @ = @

ARz ERMEARZERFNES
2.55% (20184 : 2.49%) : % EHFEHFH
HRR211 B (20184F : 212H)

EHRFEROEEESRIAEEHE -
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Cash and cash equivalents

Bt 75 ¥R 3R MY B

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

1 BERAEEEY

2019 2018

$ $

Cash at banks and on hand ROTEALFBERS 21,513,295 14,712,113
Maximum exposure to credit risk HE z&=aEERR 21,510,199 14,695,608

The carying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Assets classified as held for sale

HeRRSEEY I FASEHLEE
HE-

TEAFFLEZEE

2019 2018

$ $

At T January ®1ATH = 6,607,674
Disposal H & — (6,607,674)
At 31 December ®12A31H = =

In September 2017, the Board decided to sell the property
which was originally acquired for the office use. The sale of the
property was completed in February 2018 with the sales
consideration of $43,280,000. Gain on disposal of assefs
classified as held for sale amounting to $36,672,326 was
recognised in comprehensive income during the year ended 31

December 2018.

No asset was classified as held for sale and no gain or loss on
disposal of asset classified as held for sales in 2019.

R2017F0R E2ZB@REHER
EBAERREREZYE - ZWED
20182 A &R E43,280,0007T 5t BX
HE - REZE2018F12A31HIEFE -
ERzERaFERHEDEARIEL
EZEEMBWE36,672,3267T °

R20190F  BEEESBARBELE
NEEBLENEAKELEZEEZ
Yezn sk B8 o
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B 5 ¥R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(JA
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Accruals and other payables

Research fund
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing research
projects.

Prevention fund

A prevention fund has been set aside to finance education and
publicity programs aiming at reminding workers and their families
on the occupational hazard, and to stress the importance of
prevention.

Rehabilitation fund

A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance rehabilitation
programs which provide holistic rehabilitation care to the
patients.

Computer systems fund
A computer systems fund has been set aside fo finance
development for various sysfems.

Capital reserve

A capital reserve has been set aside fo finance the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation charged is
compensated by a transfer from this reserve each year.

Investment reserve (non-recycling)
Investment reserve (non-recycling) represents the accumulated net
change in the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI.

14
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(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Bt 75 ¥R 3R MY B

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

MRES
HRETHIAEBETT P 2 BRI 5%
HA -

ARES

HHESEBEREREBFED 2
HES BEREIRRERABER
WER  WoRBARBEE AN EEZE

Zlt-

ERES
EFRECANEDRBEREY RR
AR 2 AERRE -

ERRHESR
EMAGESANEYERERERS -

BEMA

BAREBOBIFRBEEYE KIERR
BiEES UYEFEZAEMBEIA
BENERS -

BRRMM(RUED)
BRERB(TTER) EZE AR BER
AEf2EREzEREEZRER
REEEHFE-

Bt RIER E RN KR

2019 2018

$ $

Accruals JESHFRIE 4,926,381 4,948,804
Other payables H fth jE {5008 9,923 281,150
Financial liabilities EHEE 4,936,304 5,229,954
Provision for unutilised annual leave RE B EBREE 580,000 575,000
Provision for litigation claim (note) AR R 2 B (M E) 3,829,481 3,829,481

9,345,785 9,634,435

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables

approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and

2018 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Note: Provision for litigation claim is made for a court case

which was sfill in progress at the end of the reporting
period. The provision of $3,829,481 refers to the
damage amount claimed by the patient in respect of his
disability resulting from pneumoconiosis.

20194 K2018F 12431 H - A&
ARAEBENRBZEHSEELNA
BEMRE BEHAEREE-

et : 2R S BRI I A ER

MEMEMPROREFELEE -
B 53820481 T2 RE MR
A B i BE 3R OTL B R T 8 BB B A
REZRESHE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

15 Levy income

Annual Report 2019

15 BRI A

16

2019 2018

$ $

Private sector MATE 173,735,774 173,424,994
Public works sector NHETIE

— Mass Transit Railway —ABEITR 14,547,096 24,969,552

— Port and Airport Development Scheme  — 7 O & #1525 & 51 2| 23,583,879 24,616,334

— West Kowloon Cultural District —mAEX/tE 1,754,269 2,033,291

— Others — HAth 122,484,130 142,374,024

Quarry industry AR 174,293 133,394

336,279,441 367,551,589

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and schedule 5
in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
[Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate was 0.25% on the
value of (a] all construction operations exceeding $ 1,000,000
undertaken in Hong Kong and the tender for which has been
submitted on or affer 18 June 2000 and (b) on all quarrying
products produced in Hong Kong with effect from 18 June
2000. Effective from 20 August 2012, the levy rate has been
changed to 0.15% on the value of (a) all construction operations
exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong and the
tender for which has been submitted on or after 20 August
2012 and (b) on all quarrying products produced in Hong
Kong with effect from 20 August 2012. Effective from 30 July
2018, the levy threshold on construction operations increased

from $1,000,000 to $3,000,000.

W BT 2K BRI E B M B KA
(8 18) 15 B ) SBEVIIER 19 3516 K Mt RS R
E B ER/0.25% @ B R (o) B &
REHETTMEEEB1,000,0007T 2 2
EIRR - MEZREN2000F6H18H %
&R R K (b)R 200046 A 18 B & IA
BREBERRZABAOBEEM- - 82012
F8H20H - BIREXFHEE0.15% -
ERRCMBEERBETMEERESB
1,000,000t 2 i2&E TR MEAFRER
201248 A20R 5k LA 18 & 32 ¢ R(b)R
20128 A20H KA R EE BRI Z AT
BARAEEmM- - B2018F7H308 & - ¥
EE TR ZHRFIEE A1,000,0007T
= 2 3,000,000 7T °

Employee benefit expenses 16 BEHMWRENRX
2019 2018
$ $
Wages and salaries IENHS 16,384,982 14,213,307
Staff medical insurance BB BERR 192,557 157,181
Staff compensation insurance BB ERE 24,524 =

Pension cosfs — defined contribution plan 3R K& 4 3 — FE 4 F08E %

RIKETE 550,120 544,973
Pension cosfs — mandatory provident fund ER&HZ — @HIERAES 331,651 310,034
Provision for unutilised annual leave RERATFRZEME 14,000 54,000
17,497,834 15,279,495
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None of the Board members, who are considered as key
management of the Board, received or will receive any fees or
other emoluments in respect of their services to the Board during

the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: $Nil).

B RS RAR MY aE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

KERESZEETEERABZEZER
FOMEZEREREE219F12A
SIRLEFEARZE RN ZRFEER
2 K & B BUE ] B 2 3 B A ¥R EM (2018
FE) e

Administrative expenses 17 THRAX
2019 2018
$ $
Auditor’s remuneration: ZHENE S -
— Audit services — B 180,000 190,000
— Other services — HEM AR 10,000 10,000
Impairment loss of accounts receivable J& W BR OB (B B 18 (M5 9)

(note Q) 359,232 1,565,688
Provision for litigation claim (note 14 AR (MR 14) — 3,829,481
legal and professional fees FERREEER 857,804 200,256
Printing and stationery E[I I Kz 32 % 108,275 115,341
Others HAib 1,452,935 1,318,886

2,968,246 7,229,652

Medical examination fees

Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable to
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Section 23 and 23A of
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance.

Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is
exempted by virtue of section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

18

19

HEEH

HABERARREBEPERITE R REK
(I 18) R DI E 23 R 23AM & - B &
RGN TERRHTREBRNA M
ERNERHAGZEGMEDRZHEE
A -

FreBimx

TELBABFNESHTIREE RRASE
TR BEREBBRBIEG)F 88 KM
E#HR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

20 Cash flow information

20 ReREER

(a) Ef%ﬁ%ﬁ&%i@iﬁiﬂ%

(a) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to

cash generated from operations ERE2HER
2019 2018
$ $
Surplus for the year FEAR 134,434,937 153,440,006
Adjustments for: ATNEIEFAR
Depreciation [note 5) e (MsES) 1,066,292 922,610
Amortisation of infangible assets (note 6) 4 2 & 2 # $5 (B 7 6) 177,331 50,505
Amortisation of discounts of financial RHEKATFEZ SR
assets at amortised cost (note 7) BE2IMEsE (ME7) (17,711) (17,711)
Provision for litigation claim (note 14 FFFAFR R Z B #H (M 14) — 3,829,481
Impairment loss of accounts receivable & 4z 8 7R B &5 18
(note 9) (FffF5%9) 359,232 1,565,688
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESTBABIELEEZ
as held for sale (note 12) BEMS W (FEE12) — (36,672,326)
Interest income F B WA (55,973,340] (42,348,914
Dividend income B B A (16,980,629)  (14,959,324)
Fair value loss on financial assets at RARBETFAEBERZ
FVPL (note 8) CREEZANEE
1B (M 3E8) (15,568,100) 19,526,000
Changes in working capital: BEESEE:
Accounts receivable E‘%HQE\ET (6,670,327 (8,881,383
Deposits and prepayments Re RIEFRIE (162,344 (10,280)
Advance payment for compensation EXEES 133,530) [56,500)
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3 IE K H b B A 5k (376,316) 2,532,877
Provision for long service payments REIRT € BE 9,000 1,000
Cash generated from operations EIESEEHEARS 40,431,555 78,921,729

(b) Non-cash transactions

b) kBE%5

FEZERERZAEREUUBRRE
1,449,926 70 (2018 4F : 1,144,926
JL) °

The principal non-cash transaction is the receipt of scrip
dividend of $1,449,026 (2018: $1,144,926).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingent liabilities

The Board is contingently liable for compensations payable on
44 (2018: 55] re-assessment applications under the
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation] Ordinance
which has not yet been defermined by the Pneumoconiosis

Medical Board.

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting
period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Bt 75 ¥R 3R MY B

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

21 FARAE
H2Z 8@ RAM441) (20185 : 55
) AR Rl BB 3R T & s M P B2 8 (F 1B

EODRRXUFHERIERABZER
CREZBHRBMNME-

22 BXREE

RBERARBEITNEABRRABEZE
AR

2019 2018

Property, plant and equipment W BRREE
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APPENDIX |
B 8k —

Number of Confirmed New Cases in the Past Ten Years

BRIOTFHAEZHBEAREF

Number of cases

s Total 222>

r— - - - T T T T T T T ewmaE g\ 1M/ T T T T T — == 1

i 705 (32) [123] !
1 - - - - - - - —— .
MM - - - - - - — —

85 84
80 - — ——— 1 — ——— — —— . — — — — — — — — — — — — —
74 13 14 -
69 69 71 68
2
12 9 10

9 16 9

60 1 59 16 | 13 | o o
54 9
12 2 . 6
3 4

40 — - — - — - — —— — - — e — - — . — — - — —

61 63 44 51 68 56 43 54 59 52
20 — — - — - — - — —— — - — e — - — . — - — - — —-

0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction / quarry industry
T i9 % ERTRREESIABECIAMEES
86 82 89 86 87 85 90 91 83 83 84
| Silicosis cases [l Asbestosis cases [l Mesothelioma cases Y Asbestosis &
WhnREZR AtenEREzR B EES Mesothelioma case
BIRTERR
BEEEEES
* Figures in parentheses | | represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ] represents number of Mesothelioma cases

included in the total, among which one patient was determined fo be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma.
FRBFABRABTERAEREBEZAE MINBFAAERABTRNBIEZAR EF - 2BEREDR
A ORI E E & B o
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APPENDIX ||
B 8% —

Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2019

—E-NFRAERAEZHERNERRERBERD M

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis
Bk— FiR/FHRAI(EIBEST

Age group Number of Average Average DOI
cases age (%)
F e Bl WAAE FHFR FHEXRIER
BERD R
40 - 49 3 - 2 46 27
M+ =+ sk
50 - 59 10 (1) — 58 16
A+ER TR
60 - 69 34 (1] [3] 64 14
NTEART B
= 40 - 49 P+ 70+ Uk S 70-79 13— [3] 74 29
m 50-59 A+EARA TN 10 +tH+E++ A
= (;87(;2 ﬁ—'—éﬁ—'—i%ﬁ ?;1 80 and above 8 (5 [2] 86 33
- - ES 4
80 and above N\ tERMLAE 8
Total 68 (7) [10] 67 20
By

* Total number has included 3 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not been
defermined.

Y BEBBEIRAAMERATHFENREZRTCESR -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First Registration

Bx— BWABRETHZREER

Category of occupation Number of cases  Percentage
B ZEER HmAAE it B 2 %
General work in construction site 19 — — 27.9
Hh B 4B 75
Unemployed/retired 49 (7)) [10] 721
KE/BERIK
Total 68 (7) [10] 100.0
ey

ma General work in construction site 19

AR 48 R * Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers

m= Unemployed,/refired of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
LLE/EIRIK ) ABTAERAERTARNERBBEZAS M| ARTFHAERABTHEEBEE
EPoN &
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2019
BxR= —Z-NAFRAEBERATZHELRNERRBEBEERE 2 T

Length of employment

RETERE

Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
REITE TEUT THEHUL B
Construction Only 0 (0) (0] 20 (2)*  [11* 20 (2)* [17*
RiEExR—1"
Construction & Quarry 0 (O) (O] ] (O) (O] ] (0) [0]
BERMNABERE
Construction & Quarry and others 5 (2) (2] 31 (3) [0] 36 (5) 2]
BEF AEERHEMITE
Sub-total 5 (2) [2] 52 (5)+ [1I* 57 (7)* [3]*
EEPA
Other industries
Hi1T%
Ship manufacturing/sailoring 0 (0) [0] 3 (0 [3] 3 (0 [3]
BT
Machine repairing/metal work 0 (0) [0] 1 (0) [1] ] (0) [1]
BmEE HiE TR
Jade/gem stone polishing 0 (0) [0] 2 (0 [0] 2 (0 [0]
Th/EAME
Bricks,/marble work 0 (0) [0] 1 (0 [0] 1 (0 [0]
BE BB )
Others 1 (0) [0] 3 (0 [3] 4 (0 [3]
EAh
Sub-total 1 (0) [0] 10 (0) [7] 11 (0) [7]
EEPNH
Total 6 (2) [2] 62 (5)* [8]* 68 (7) [10]*
B

Notes:

— Figures in parentheses | ) represent number of Asbesfosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the fotal.
— Among the 68 cases under study, 57 (83.8%) have worked in the construction and /or the quarry industries. Only 11 (16.2%) have had employment
connection with neither.

One patient was determined fo be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma.

| B

(|ABFRERAETARMAERBEZIAE M NEFRIREREHTENBELE 2 AL
— BEO8EBET S7A(83.8%) BRBEERER ABETHE REITANOC2D)RAREMITET -
* RBEREDRANESEARAERRENE -
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B &% =

Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance as at 31 December 2019

REZ2-NE+ZA=+—-—R(ERTNERREKE (@R RIDBEH TN

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”

Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [BERARI"FARHESZSRAMESHEIN
Degree of incapacity Number Total Average
assessed in latest of case(s) amount of compensation
assessment / monthly  payment per
re-assessment (%) payment month per
case
BHEHZELRIE BAAH BERWEHE BABAF¥Y
HOIBRERS X B BEHEESH
($) ($)
5-20 135 755,815 5,599
25-40 52 461,790 8,881
45 - 60 26 333,220 12,816
65-280 7 92,575 13,225
5-20% 135 85-100 2 48,190 24,095
25 -40% 52 " Total 222 1,691,590 7,620
45 - 60% 26 B
65 - 80% In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 4 cases at $5,600 per case per
85 - 100% 2 month.

BABRARBENEREARTNATZ[EERRESTENME] -

*

"Old case” refers to cases of those patients who have received a lump-sum compensation before

the Ordinance was amended in 1993.

* [EEREIRIOOSEENEUA G EERI—FBIHENRAME -

Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”

Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients

Bx= [HEARI'FARHESZSAMESEIN
Degree of incapacity Number Total Average
assessed in latest of case(s) amount of compensation
assessment / monthly  payment per
re-assessment (%) payment month per
case
BHEAZCERIE BWAAH BRWEHE BABATY
EOIREBS = B EBEHEESH
($) ($)
5-20 958 7,872,335 8,217
25-40 154 2,280,172 14,806
45 - 60 68 1,414,931 20,808
65 -80 20 533,875 26,694
5 - 20% 758 T85-100 10 347,455 34,746
25 40% "4 Total 1210 12,448,768 10,288
45 - 60% 68 4 8y
65 -80% 20
85 - 100% 10 In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 8 cases at $5,600 per case per

month.

B8EMARHINEREGARTRATZ[EERRETEAHE]

#

#

“New case” refers to cases of those patients who have not received any lump-sum compensation

before.

[#rERIBIERER—ERBIHENBABRSR -
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(FERTE RN B RE (HEIRM) T HRBE

Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)

Compensation item Expenses Expenses Total Expenses
incurred from incurred from incurred from
1 Jan to 1 Jan to 9 Jul 1993 to
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
fEER ZE-hEF —E-NE —hh=%F
—A—BZ%E —A—B=% tAhBZE
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+-—-H —E-hF
Z¥H 2% +=ZA=+-—H
XA
($) ($) ($)
Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both) 26,579,580 26,779,345 503,732,364
RN ERKEEE(HME)
ST (E
Compensation for bereavement 636,458 673,180 15,811,281
HEETZ2BEMNHEE
Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities 172,503,860 174,293,936 3,400,959,322
BRI BB B EEREFELE
W& AEE
Compensation for incapacity prior fo date of diagnosis 2,927,157 2,148,243 50,333,127
HME BRI R TIERE WA E
Compensation for care and attention 672,750 418,918 17,386,381
EIENRBESENEE
Funeral expenses 5,787,058 5,487,041 68,688,318
BIRE
Medical expenses 2,519,786 2,267,596 38,011,000
BERE
Expenses for medical appliances 1,370,753 1,395,655 24,859,943
BEREEBHA
Total 212,997,402 213,463,914 4,119,781,736

By
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APPENDIX IV
B 45 79

Profile of All Cases Receiving Compensation as at 31 December 2019
REB-NANF+ZAZ+-—BFEEERNBEEBAZGTESR

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients

m 60 - 69
m /0-79

== 80 and above

394

20 - 29
30-39
40 - 49
50 - 59
60 - 69
70-79
80 and above

NTERTAR
t+EE TR
NtBRRIAE

—tE=Thm
—+E==th5
P9+ Z P04 R
A+ER+TAR
~NTEAT AR
&+
NFs A E

33
107
82

1

1

4
54
580
394
176

Bx— [BEERIBAZSTER
Age group Number of Average Average degree
cases age of incapacity (%)
FHeE R mAAE FHFR FHRRIFED
BEBSX
60 - 69 33 o7 31
RTEEXRT AR
70-79 107 75 25
++EL T+ B
80 and above 82 85 20
N+ 5% R A
Total 222 77 24
By
Table 2: Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and

Mesothelioma Patients

Bx= [#HERIBAZSTER

Age group Number of Average Average degree
cases age of incapacity (%)

F i 48 Bl mAANE FHFR FHRARIEED

BERD R

20 - 29 ] [1] 29 100

“TEZFTAR

30 -39 S 38 10

=TE=TNm®

40 - 49 4 (2] 46 23

M+ Z= 0+ sk

50-59 54 [3] 57 15

A+ERA TR

60 - 69 580  [4] 65 16

RTEXRTNARE

70-79 394 (4] 74 17

t+ELT AR

80 and above 176 (2] 85 20

N+ &AL

Total 1210 [17] 70 17

By

Note :

Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.

]

(IRNBEFLAEREBTHARBEEEZ ALK -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AEBTTIIR)

Five-Year Financial Summary

Annual Report 2019

IFMBRE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“—E-hE ZE-N\F ZE—tF ZE-R"E ZE-IF
($'000)
Income ' ON
levies BR 336,279 367,552 370,350 346,934 358,063
Interest ks 55,974 42,349 34,311 30,065 35,968
Others Hp A 17,377* 52,366 16,999 14,518 19,452
Fair value gain on financial assets ARAABEAREREEZ
(Tracker Fund) NABEUZ(BEESR) 15,568 — — — —
Total income mUA 425,198 462,267 421,660 391,517 413,483
Expenditure X it
Compensation e 212997 213,464 204,407 192,212 188,449
Project expenses EEI X 48,671 43,955 41,327 24,082 32,416
Staff, administrative and other expenses 8 8 ~ 1T E A R £ X 27,218 30,194 24,331 21,122 20,116
Depreciation/Amoriisation FE His 1,244 973 1,014 1,014 1,014
Capital expenditure ERAY 633 715 959 769 843
Exchange loss/Fair value loss on ERERE/UALBENE
financial assets (Tracker Fund) TREECANEEEE
(BEES) — 19,526 - 653 5,304
Total expenditure B 290,763 308,827 272,038 239,852 248,142
Surplus for the year TFEE A% 134,435 153,440 149,622 151,665 165,341
Transfer from capital reserve HEREEREH 1,243 7,581 1,014 1,014 1,014
Transfer from investment reserve HIEEEERH - 39,585 - - -
Accumulated fund brought forward FEERE 2,584,070 2,373,536 2,218,517 2,078,539 1,920,364
2,719,748 2,574,142 2,369,153 2,231,218 2,086,719
Transfer fo project funds/computer BARHES EKELG
systems fund/capital reserve BEe/EARE (49 795)  (45,176) (40,779) (37,817) (40,595)
Transfer from project funds to REDESE L
compensate project expenses =t 60,327 55,104 45,162 25116 32,415
Accumulated fund carried forward BTEEyE2EES 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536 2,218,517 2,078,539

on late payments of levies at $257,677 and sundry income of $1.

* H W ABERE LMESMERE 16,980,029 RKEFESMIRIZTHEM139,0047T « FIE AT R

NMEEEBATTT

il

Others include dividend income from listed securities amounting to $16,980,629, Ex-gratia Fund administration charge received at $139,004, penalty

257,677 7T
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